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FOREWORD BY THE MEMBER OF EXECUTIVE COUNCIL
South Africa and KwaZulu-Natal finds itself at a critical
economic juncture. As we pursue the reduction of the
triple challenges of unemployment, poverty and
inequality in the broader context of the forth Industrial
Revolution, a radical economic transformation is
needed that fundamentally changes the patterns of
ownership, control and management of the economy in
the interests of the poor and vulnerable people of South
Africa.
To fuel this fundamental change, a healthy, educated
and skilled population needs to be harnessed to drive
future economic growth and ensure a fair distribution of
the benefits that accrue as a result.
In South Africa and KZN, many of the scarce skills
required for present and future economic growth are in
the disciplines of Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics (STEM). Through the Moses Kotane Institute, we have deliberate education and
skills development programmes that are aimed at increasing access and success to STEM
disciplines as a scarce skill, to develop and capacitate youth towards addressing the skills
shortage in the economy. The more people we have educated and trained in STEM
disciplines, the greater will be our ability to embrace and determine the course of the 4 th
Industrial Revolution in South Africa in the interest of the poor and vulnerable.
As the KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) Department of Economic Development, Tourism and
Environmental Affairs we are proud of the strides made by Moses Kotane Institute of ensuring
that the previously disadvantaged youth are provided with opportunities that will enable them
to better their lives.
This year alone, the Moses Kotane Institute funds 143 previously disadvantaged students from
KwaZulu-Natal that are pursuing careers in STEM related fields such as; Nautical studies,
Information Technology, Biotechnology, Industrial, Mechanical, Electrical and Civil
Engineering.
The recent collaboration between the Moses Kotane Institute with other key role players such
as Samsung, Coastal College, and Ethekwini Municipality has resulted in the launch of the
first Samsung Engineering Academy in KZN that is situated in KwaMashu.
The Samsung Engineering Academy will play a pivotal role in advancing skills development
and to address the issue of unemployment in KZN as our youth will be provided with critical
skills such as repairing Samsang appliances including; refrigerators, air conditioners,
cellphones, fridges and microwaves. This collaboration will ensure that we create a skilled
workforce that will contribute to the economic growth by becoming entrepreneurial.
Over the course of the next financial year the mandate of the Moses Kotane Institute will be
refined. Although still focused on expanding access to skills training in STEM fields for young
black people, and Africans in particular, the Institute will increasingly aim to develop its
knowledge base to radically transform the KZN economy. A key focus area for the Institute
will be conducting economic research that supports the objectives, programmes and sector
choices of the KZN provincial government. This will include research focusing on the Maritime
sector in support of the strategy to grow the oceans economy, agricultural and agro-processing
sector in support of RASET and Operation Vula and specific manufacturing sub-sectors that
support the creation of industrial hubs in KZN. In doing so the MKI will become a think tank
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and thought leader in critical economic sectors that will enable radical economic
transformation and better strategic approaches to growth and development.
As we continuously strive for clean governance and effective service delivery, I would like to
congratulate the MKI for achieving a second consecutive clean audit. I would also like to thank
all our strategic partners, sponsors, the Board, management, officials and all stakeholders that
took part and have worked with the Moses Kotane Institute to achieve our common objectives.
There is still room for improvement, and excellence will be achieved by this Institute in the
next financial year.

.
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CHAIRMAN’S REMARKS
It is my pleasure to present the 2016/17 annual report of the
Moses Kotane Institute (MKI). We cannot deny that the
period under review remained a challenging one for the
institute, however our turnaround as presented in this
annual report affirms that we managed to overcome the
disappointments and challenges that we experienced.
Part of our accomplishments include the relationship we
have maintained with different value adding partners
including the: LG SETA, National Skills Fund (NSF),
Samsung South Africa and our long-standing partner
TETA. These partners have contributed the total of R9
million towards skills development for the KwaZulu-Natal
(KZN) unemployed youth that they can actively participate
in economic development. Our recent collaboration with
Samsung, Ethekwini Municipality and Coastal college has
resulted in the development of Samsung Engineering
Academy in KwaMashu. The academy will train the unemployed youth to repair refrigerators, air
conditioners, cellphones and microwaves and will enable them to enter gainful employment and/or start
their own businesses.
We would like to extend our heartfelt gratitude to our two recent sponsors namely; South African
Shipyards (SAS) and Women’s Investment Portfolio Holdings (WIPHOLD) for their generous financial
donations in 2016. We would also like to acknowledge the Spring Light Gas (SL Gas) contribution
towards the building of an eco-lab at Olwandle High School, which is a school that won in the ‘I am an
Engineer’ innovation competition held in 2016.
The acquisition of STEM related skills and education is fundamental to achieving radical economic
transformation. Indeed, in the economic context of a rapidly changing patterns of production and
consumption driven by technology, the advent of the 4th Industrial Revolution demands STEM skills at
its core. MKI’s changing mandate in the 2017-18 financial year will see it playing a leading role in the
development of STEM skills training and research to support EDTEA’s strategic economic growth focus
areas including tourism, oceans economy, oil and gas, manufacturing and textile. The emphasis in skills
training will be on relevant STEM skills that unemployed young people need to acquire to enable them
to be employed or start their own businesses. Authoritative research in targeted sectoral areas will
enable MKI and EDTEA to lead the thought process on various economic issues of importance.
I would also like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude and warmest appreciation to the
Board for their stewardship and guidance over the years. I take this opportunity to also thank the MKI
staff for the energy that they have put into bettering and growing the institute. Most importantly, I
thank our shareholder EDTEA represented by the Member of Executive Committee, honourable Mr
Sihle Zikalala for their constructive engagement and guidance.
I conclude by congratulating MKI and all key role players for receiving once again another clean audit
outcome for the year under review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
Having been seconded from the Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
(EDTEA) to act as the Acting CEO from mid-January
2017, I must start off by thanking the staff and Board of
the Institute for the warm welcome and my department
and Executive Authority for their confidence and support.
It has, so far, been an interesting journey.
In the 2016-17 financial-year the MKI met less than 50%
of its service delivery targets. Many factors drove this
poor performance including: having too many annual
performance targets not always directly linked to
expenditure, a high vacancy rate (68%) particularly in the
line function components and delays in the
implementation of its projects linked to external factors.
However, more positively, the institute had supported over 500 people (including unemployed
youth) in skills development across several projects including amongst others: IT technical
support, radio production, digital terrestrial television installation and the municipal financial
management programme. A total of 14 561 matric learners were supported by providing
additional STEM classes during school holidays and weekends as well as over 600 educators
as part of the Matric Intervention and Just-in-time projects. Just fewer than 300 disadvantaged
learners at high school and at tertiary institutions were also supported through the MKI bursary
scheme in 2016.
The MKI also achieved a clean audit for the second consecutive year, a testament to effective
management systems.
The 2017-18 Annual Performance Plan has fewer indicators now directly linked to the
expenditure and productive activities of the institute. Many projects carried over from 2016-17
and linked to skills training will be realised in the financial year. The drive to continuously
improve management service delivery systems will be intensified. The year will also see the
MKI beginning to position itself in relation to its new mandate, as will be determined by the
provincial government. In summary, the year ahead holds the promise of being more
productive and impactful.
Finally, I would like to thank the staff of MKI for their commitment, hard work and enthusiasm
in meeting the MKI’s service delivery objectives.

________________________
Mr Ranveer Persad
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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PART A: THE ORGANISATION
1. Overview of the Institute

PROVINCIAL GROWTH DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

STRATEGIC PILLARS OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

Vision:
Leading the attainment of radical and
inclusive economic growth through
STEM related education and skills
development.
Mission: Facilitate strategic collaborations in STEM related education and skills development to support
access to economic opportunities.

Programme 1:
Administration
•Office of the CEO
•Human Resources,
Administration and IT
•Business development
•Finance
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Programme 2:
Skills Development
•Artisanship
•Apprenticeship
•Learnerships
•Sector linked training (on
demand)

7

Programme 3:
STEM Academic
development and Support
•Matric intevention
programme
•Educator development
•Graduate development
•Research

MKI became a vehicle for the implementation of training projects focused on vocationally
oriented STEM apprenticeships, learnerships and artisan training with funding provided
primarily by the Sector Education Training Authorities (SETA). More recently over the
course of 2015-16, the MKI established the STEM Fund to provide for additional financial
resources to invest in STEM related education and training resources.

Mandate
To develop skills in STEM that is sufficient
and appropriate to service the economic
growth and development needs of the
province.

Vision
Leading the attainment of radical and inclusive
economic growth through STEM related
education and skills development.

Mission
Facilitate strategic collaborations in STEM related
education and skills development to support
access to economic opportunities.

Values
- Ubuntu
- People orientated
- Egalitarianism
- Political rectitude
- Responsibility, accountability and sustainability
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2. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals

Goal 1

Goal 2

To establish and maintain effective corporate
governance.

To position MKI as a preferred partner in
STEM skills development.

Strategic goals

Goal 3

Goal 4

Provide financial support for recognised
STEM education interventions to drive a
knowledge based economy.

To implement occupationally directed STEM
skills development programmes.

2.1 Economic Policy and Strategy
The overall thrust of South Africa’s economic policy and strategy to address both low growth
and the key challenges of inequality and unemployment, is to pursue an inclusive economic
growth agenda.
• NDP and PGDP
• IPAP
• EDTEA’s Pillars
2.2 Organisational Environment
The organisational structure of MKI was reviewed and a new organisational structure
approved by the Board in December 2015 in terms of the 2014-2019 strategic plan, as revised.
The total establishment as per the approved organogram is 28.
Due to the provincial wide moratorium on the filling of vacant posts, the MKI has been unable
to fill 68% of posts on the structure as envisaged. Only 9 (32%) posts are filled on a permanent
basis. In terms of the posts that are filled, only one executive (CFO) position is filled, two
managers (Communications and Supply Chain Management), and the rest of the nine is
administrative support. There were no managers in the core business and this remained a
challenge and a constraint in delivering on the core mandate.
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2.3 Moses Kotane Institute focus areas
In 2015/16, the MKI undertook a review of its service delivery environment and identified key
strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats that it faced in the implementation of its
mandate. There was an agreement between MKI management and the Board of Directors that
the work of the institute focus on two main programmes including:
(a) Skills Development Partnerships in SET
(b) Academic Support and Development in STEM
It should be noted that (a) is primarily funded through external funding from public and private
sectors, and (b) is funded by Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
EDTEA (Vote 4). In terms of (a) the MKI has primarily been an implementing agent for the
SETA’s and other funders who are pursuing specific skill training requirements. Here the MKI
provides services related to procurement, financial management and the management of
service providers. In terms of (b) funding allocated from the EDTEA is used to support
secondary school learners, educators and schools as well as providing bursaries for university
students who are pursuing studies related to STEM. Notwithstanding the review of the
strategic plan, a second review of the strategic plan of MKI was undertaken in 2016 to align
more closely with the EDTEA. This review suggested changes to the vision, mission and
strategic goals and indicators for MKI. However, much of the core work of MKI remains the
same.
Within the context of the role of the provincial Department of Education (DOE) in supporting
STEM related education initiatives as well as the increased funding of the National Students
Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS) which aims to provide free education for poor students, the
role of MKI needs to be re-conceptualised. Apart from government bodies involved in
supporting STEM related education and providing additional resources to expand access to
PSET, it is evident that there are also privately funded bodies such as the Centre for the
Advancement of Science, Maths Education (CASME) or the KZN Science Centre supporting
science education. In addition, MKI’s role in supporting the implementation of EDTEA’s
strategic pillars should feature centrally in such a reconceptualization of the role of MKI.
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2.4 Legislative and Policy Mandate

The Moses Kotane Institute (MKI) was incorporated as a Non-Profit Company in terms of the
Companies Act, 2008 as amended to pursue activities for public benefit. The main objective
of the company is to support education and training initiatives in Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) that better equip members of society and particularly
teachers, learners and students to gainfully participate in a rapidly evolving knowledge and
technologically driven economy.
Although MKI is not a scheduled public entity, annually, the MKI enters a funding agreement
with the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental
Affairs (EDTEA), in terms of which the MKI is required to submit quarterly and annual reports,
including financial management reports in terms of section 7(1) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulations 31.1.3. As its main funder and sole member, the
MKI is accountable to the KwaZulu-Natal Member of Executive Council for EDTEA and thus
has an obligation to comply with the relevant legislation governing its main shareholder. This
includes the following legislative and regulatory frameworks:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

Companies Act
Public Financial Management Act
Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Labour Relations Act
Basic Condition of Employment Act
Public Service Act
Small Business Act
Co-operatives Development Act
Manufacturing Development Act
Schedule 4 of the Constitution, namely, urban and rural development; and
Chapter 10 of the Constitution

The mandate of the institute is informed and derived from various strategies, policies and
plans developed at a national and provincial level. These include amongst others:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
g)
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National Development Plan
Provincial Growth and Development Strategy and Plan
Human Resource Development Strategy for South Africa
National Skills Development Strategy
National Youth Development Strategy and Plan
National Accord: Youth Development
HRD Strategic Framework for Public Service Vision 2015
Provincial HRD strategy
KZN BB-BEE Strategy
New Growth Path
Industrial Policy Action Plans
Provincial Youth Development Strategy
KZN Integrated Maritime Strategy

11

MKI students that are currently enrolled for the Radio Production Learnership

Mbazwana youth that were trained by the Moses Kotane Institute for the Digital Terrestrial
Television (DTT) Programme
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2.5 High level organisational structure

MEC for Economic
Development,
Tourism and
Environmental Affairs

Board of directors

5 Board Committees
Audit & Risk, Finance, Human Resources, Education and
Skills Development and Social & Ethics

Chief Executive Officer

Corporate
Administration
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Skills Development in
SET

13

STEM Academic
Development &
Support

PART B: PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
1. Introduction
This section highlights performance against strategic goals of MKI for the year 2016/17.
Activities are categorised in three programmes, namely;
Programme 1: Corporate Administration
Programme 2: Skills Development
Programme 3: STEM Academic Development and Support
2.
PROGRAMME 1: CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION
Corporate administration programme provides support to the other programmes within MKI
that are focussed on assisting learners and educators in preparing them for employment and
other economic opportunities in the South African marketplace. The support offered includes
providing strategic direction, integration and co-ordination of activities, support on finance and
supply chain activities, performance based monitoring and evaluation, human resource
management services, facilities management services, marketing, business development and
communication services. It is a transversal programme aimed at improving and maintaining
the effective and efficient functioning of the operational activities and ensuring good
governance.
2.1 Office of the CEO
The Office of the CEO provided overall strategic direction, leadership and management for
MKI. It ensured that there is alignment across the operational programmes, implemented the
strategy, policy and directives of the Board. It also ensured that ensured that the strategic and
annual performance plan targets are achieved. The monetary value brought in by this office is
external funding of R9 million in addition to the main appropriation.
2.2 Human Resources, administration and information technology
The purpose of this unit is to manage utilisation of human resources effectively and efficiently
in accordance to the organisational strategy. The approved staff complement is 28 staff
members. Out of the 28, the vacancies are at 20 posts.
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Staff % 2016/17
80%
68%

70%
60%
50%
40%

32%

30%

25%

25%

20%
7%

10%

4%

4%
0%

0%
Filled
positions

Vacancies

Female

Male

African

Indian

Coloured

White

Vacancies: The Institute has tried to manage and implement programmes where possible,
however, there has been high vacancy rate of 68%, and could not fill in the positions due to
the moratorium on vacant positions. The Institute is confident that there will be considerations
by the authorities to allow the Institute to fill the positions. It should be noted that the Institution
understands the reasoning behind not filling in the post during the year, part of being a review
of the Institute’s mandate.
Employment equity: The rate of African females is exciting; however, the Institute needs to
improve on employment from other racial groups to reflect the demographics of the province.
The Institute will also look at employing people with disability to align with the 2% national
target.
Information Technology: We are delighted that in our growth, we are starting to establish
the Information Technology function. We developed the information technology strategy
aligned to business to the business processes. The strategy will be operationalised and
implemented during the 2017/18 year. This has been the greatest achievement on the IT
side since the establishment of the Institute.
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2.3 Finance
This unit supports the operations of the Institute through providing financial and supply chain
management services, contract management, entity performance monitoring, reporting and
budgetary support to all programmes. In addition, it assists the entity with the legal, company
secretaryship and risk management.

√ Budgeting
√ Financial control
√ Supply chain
√ Reporting

√ Risk management
√ Compliance
√ Legal & contract

√ Company secretaryship
√ Governance

√ Oversees audit processes

During the year, the Institute strengthened its financial controls and spent funds within
budget. The Institute prides itself in having spent 80% of its budget towards previously
disadvantaged people as part of meeting the provincial B-BBEE strategic outcome. Risks
have been tightly managed and implementation plans to mitigate risks closely monitored.
This has brought the Institute closer towards compliance with laws and regulations, and
to strengthen governance. A risk based internal audit is part of the annual activity to
ensure that all structures comply and that all parties work towards a clean audit.
The Institute prides itself to have raised R9 million from external funding sources, and
have spent that towards skills development programme. In addition, we strive towards
achieving a clean audit. Please see Part C for financial performance of the Institute.
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2.4 Business Development and Communications
This unit provides support to the operations of the institute by securing partnerships for the
delivery of STEM skills development. It also establishes and maintains effective
communication within MKI, shareholder and external stakeholders. In July 2016, we hosted
a graduate event where all students sponsored by the Institute attended and were motivated
in line with STEM careers. We are grateful to our partners South African Shipyard and
Wiphold who donated funds towards the success of this event.

African Shipyards (SAS) Representatives, Mrs Trishna Misra SAS (CFO) and Ms Lucinda Creamer SAS
(Marketing Officer)
Career Exhibition held at Richards Bay

Learners attending the Moses Kotane Institute stand at the Port of Richards Bay 40th Anniversary
Career Exhibition
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3.

PROGRAMME 2: SKILLS DEVELOPMENT IN SET

This programme focuses on vocationally oriented skills training within the Science,
Engineering and Technology fields. Specifically, the programme project manages funds
provided by and leveraged from Sector Education Training Authorities through subcontracting service providers who deliver training content to people as part of learnerships,
apprenticeships and artisanship training. Because the delivery of this programme is heavily
reliant on external funding, the Institute achieved some of the anticipated projects.

3.1 Telecommunications

Digital Terrestrial
600
500
500
395

400

300

200

100

0
Target

Achievement

We have trained a number of unemployed youth in digital terrestrial migration. Our target was
to train 500 unemployed youth, and we have trained 395, which is an excellent achievement.
The youth is in the rural areas, south and northern KwaZulu-Natal province. This project is
funded by the National Skills Fund (NSF), and the Institute partnered with the Office of the
Premier to provide technical and financial support.
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The Msinga group of unemployed youth that were trained in Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT)
Programme

Former Department of Communications Minister, Ms Faith Muthambi awarding certificates to MKI
Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) Programme students

19 | P a g e

19

Digital installation tools worth R5000 each, handed to each trainee to enable them to open business
opportunities and install.

3.2 Information Technology
NCV in Information Technology
50

46

46

Target

Achievement

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10
5
0

We supported 46 learners to study National Vocational Certificate in Information Technology.
The youth studied at Elangeni TVET College campus located in Pinetown, west of Durban.
The succeeded youth from the programme proceeded to study National Diplomas in
Information Technology at the Durban University of Technology, and at Mangosuthu
University of Technology, and are supported by the programme of MKI
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3.3 CompTIA

CompTIA
14
12

12

Target

Achievement

12
10
8
6
4
2
0

We have partnered with the Broadband College in Durban to provide A+ and N+ skills to 12
unemployed youth. The Institute provided financial support to ensure that the youth achieves
this set of skills.

3.4 Information Technology Technical Support Training

IT Technical Support
60
50

48

40
30
18

20
10
0
Target

Achievement

The Institute had targeted to train 48 learners on Information Technology Technical Support
programme, however the implementation did not progress as initially anticipated. There was
an underachievement in this area, and the project was scheduled to be continued in the
following financial year 2017/18
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3.5 Radio Production

Radio Production
25

23

23

Target

Achievement

20
15
10
5
0

We had targeted to train 23 unemployed youth on the Radio Production project. The training
is conducted by NEMISA. This project will be finalised in the next financial year 2017/18.

Nqobile the MKI Radio Production Learnership student, with Vanessa Marawa of Vuma Fm, and
the Charperson of the Board, Dr Sakhile Ngcobo
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3.6 Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL)

Recognition of Prior Learning
350

321

300
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150
100
100
50
0
Target

Achievement

We had targeted to send through 100 youth and adults to be assessed under the
Recognition of Prior Learning project. At year end, we had received 321 expressions of
interest to participate in the programme, of which 167 have been registered to commence
training. Thank you to the funder Transport Education Training Authority (TETA), who
provided financial resources to the project. This was a great achievement.

3.7 Municipal Finance Management Training

Municipal Finance Management
300

270

250
200
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100
50
0
Target

Achievement

We had targeted to train 270 municipal employees on Municipal Finance Management. The
project commenced during the year under review, we successfully commenced with training
of 133 employees. The project is scheduled to be finalised in the 2017/18 financial year. This
project is funded by the Local Government SETA (LG SETA).
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4.

PROGRAMME 3: STEM ACADEMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPORT

This programme provides support in an interdisciplinary and applied approach through STEM
Academic Development and partnerships for STEM resources development and provision of
innovative approaches to formal and informal STEM learning. The programme provides and
manages financial support to secondary schools in terms of resources required by learners,
educators and schools as well as bursaries for tertiary level students focused on studies in the
STEM fields.

4.1 Matric Intervention Project (MIP) and STEM incubation
MIP and STEM Incubation
70000
60480
60000
50000
40000
30000
20000

14561

10000
0
Target

Achievement

This project aims to provide extra classes and to incubate learners in high school to focus and
elect STEM related streams. The extra tuition is provided to high schools identified by the
Department of Education in the province, and is provided during weekends and school
holidays by the qualifying Lead Educators under the Matric Intervention Project (MIP). The
Incubation project is held in 4 boarding schools (Adams College, Dlangezwa High School,
Mlokothwa High School and Ohlange High School). Learners are selected from identified
schools and are sent to these four schools for incubation to intensively learn Mathematics,
Physical Science, Life Science and English, from grade 10 to 12. During the year under review,
we have achieved to support 14 561 learners compared to the target of 60 480. The project is
demand driven and numbers are dependent on the willingness of learners to attend. During
the latter part of the year, the MIP project was taken over by the Department of Education and
the Institute focused only on the incubation project, hence the under achievement.
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The 2016 Dlangezwa High School grade 12 learners that were under the MKI Incubator schools
programme

Dlangezwa High School Learners demonstrating their science capabilities with the science kit that was
sponsored by the Moses Kotane Institute
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The 2016 Adams College learners that were under the MKI Incubator schools programme

4.2 STEM Graduate Development

STEM Graduate Development
120

110
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Achievement

The Institute also support students who are pursuing STEM related fields at the Universities
and Universities of Technology. During the year under review, the Institute could assist 75
students of the targeted 110. The underachievement was based on many contributors, such
as fees must fall campaigns that made students to be left behind, the student drop outs and
other contributory factors.
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The 2017 first group of MKI STEM Bursary receipts

The 2017 Moses Kotane Institute Bursary Holders that are registered at the Durban University of
Technology (DUT) with MKI Board Members and DUT Executive Deans
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Bursary awardee, Nondumiso Hadebe
graduates in BSc (Microbiology and
biochemistry): University of KwaZuluNatal
Bursary awardee, Mbono Kwela,
graduates in National Diploma:
Construction management: Durban
University of Technology

Bongekile Nyoka MKI Former graduate from the Durban University of Technology standing proudly
next to her parents
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2016 MKI Bursary holders from DUT

4.3 Educator Professional Development

Educator Professional Development
680
670
670
660
650
640
630

623

620
610
600
590
Target

Achievement

This project involves providing workshops to Lead Educators with updated and relevant
content in STEM, to enable the educators to teach Maths and Physics better. We had a
target of 670 for the financial year, however we could only achieve 623 because of our
capacity constraints. The project has since been moved to the Department of Education
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4.4 Innovation Competition
The Institute supported an innovation competition under the theme ‘I am an engineer
innovative competition’ for the year. This has been the most exciting achievement with 14
schools participating from the KZN districts, three schools won with first, second and third
prize. The first prize was an eco-lab which won by Olwandle High School worth over R1,2
million. It is with great thanks to Spring Light Gas that donated over R300 000 towards the
construction of an eco-lab. The second and third prize winners, Mthanti Commercial Tech and
Bangani High winning the science resources valued at R80 000 to assist the schools.

Olwandle High School learners. 2016 Winners of the ‘I am an engineer’ competition

Representative learners of the 14 schools that participated in the I am an Engineer competition
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Date of incorporation
The institute was incorporated on 28 November 2008, however, commenced trading on 1 January 2009.
Nature of activities
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC is involved in the conceptualization, facilitation and implementation of
programs and interventions aimed at achieving a high level of skills in areas of STEM (science,
technology, engineering and mathematics).
Function and reporting currency
Function and reporting currency of the Institute is the South African Rand.
Directors
The directors of the Institute during the period 31 March 2017 and to the date of this report were:
Name
Dr S G Ngcobo (Chairman)
Prof. M S Maharaj
Dr. I Z Machi
Dr. E V Nzama
Ms. M P Myeni
Ms. S Khomo
Mr. B Gutshwa***
Mr. S B Mpungose*
Dr. B D Mkhwanazi** (Deceased)

Appointment date
25 February 2011
25 February 2011
25 February 2011
25 February 2011
01 December 2011
01 January 2014
20 September 2012
13 October 2014
25 February 2011

Reappointed
01 January 2017
01 January 2017
01 January 2017
01 January 2017
01 January 2017
01 January 2017
01 January 2017

* is the executive director.
** Deceased and subsequently resigned on 4 August 2016
***Independent member
Annual Financial Statements
The company’s directors were responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Annual
Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies Act No.71 of 2008 of South Africa. The Annual Financial Statements were
prepared by the office of the Chief Financial Officer.
Company Secretary
Statucor served as the Company Secretary for the year under review.
Business address
14 Lakeside Unit
Derby Downs Office Park
1 University Road
Westville, 3634

Postal address
P.O Box 2357
Westville
3630

Bankers
First National Bank
5 Old Main Road
Hillcrest, 3650

Auditors
Auditor-General of South Africa
Block B, 460 Townbush Road
Cascades, Pietermaritzburg, 3201
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
The directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual financial
statements of Moses Kotane Institute NPC, in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa. The financial
statements presented have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, and include amounts based on
judgements and estimates made by management. The external auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
It is the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute (“the Institute”)
maintains a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance that the Institute’s
assets are safeguarded against material loss or unauthorized use, and that transactions are properly
authorised and recorded. The control system includes written accounting and control policies and
procedures with clearly drawn lines of accountability and delegation of authority.
All employees are required to maintain the highest ethical and integrity standards in ensuring that the
Institute’s business practices are conducted in a manner which, in all reasonable circumstances, is
above reproach. The concept of reasonable assurance recognises that the control procedures should
not exceed expected benefits. The Institute maintains its internal control system through management
review. Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate any breakdown in the functions of
these controls during the period under review, which resulted in any material loss to the Institute.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared based on accounting policies applicable to a
going concern. The Board of Directors have adopted this basis of accounting after having made
enquires of management and given due consideration to information presented to the Board, including
budgets and cash flow projections for the period ahead and key assumptions and accounting policies
relating thereto. Accordingly, the Directors have no reason to believe that the Institute will not continue
as a going concern in the foreseeable future.
The external auditors were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. The
Directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditors during the audit were valid
and appropriate.
External auditors’ responsibility is to review and report on these Annual Financial Statements. The
independent auditors have audited the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 set on pages 15 - 56 were reviewed
by the Audit and Risk Committee on 05 May 2017 and subsequently approved by the Board on 08 May
2017. The Annual Financial Statements were submitted to the independent auditors for auditing in terms
of the Companies Act.
Directors’ Approval of Unaudited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, as set out on pages 15 - 56 were
approved by the Board on 08 May 2017 and are signed on their behalf.

_____________________
Mr. Ranveer Persad
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Sakhile G. Ngcobo
Chairman of the Board
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC (“the Institute”) continues to operate in a manner that is in line with
governance best practices and with regards to accountability, transparency, fairness and responsibility.
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is responsible for conducting the affairs of the Institute with integrity
and in accordance with the Companies Act and Kings Code of Corporate Governance Principles (King
IV). Management is responsible and accountable to the Board for designing, implementing and
monitoring the policies and systems approved by the Board and for integrating them into the day-to-day
operational activities.
We are committed to integrity, ethical values and professionalism in all our structural activities that will
ensure that the Institute’s business remains sustainable in the long term. An essential part of this
commitment is our Board’s support for the highest standards of corporate governance.
Shareholder compact
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC was established as a Non-Profit company in terms of the Companies
Act, Act No. 71 of 2008 as amended. The Department of Economic Development, Tourism and
Environmental Affairs is the Shareholder and has authority over the Institute in terms of the Public
Amendment Act 30 (2007), which has an objective to introduce government components as a service
within the public delivery, through a focused, ring-fenced, separate entity under the direct control of the
Minster or other executive authority.
Each year, the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC enters into an annual funding agreement with The
KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (“EDTEA”)
and agrees on its performance objectives, measures and indicators in line with government treasury
regulations principles under the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA). The annual targets are
annexed to a list of principles agreed between the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC and its shareholder and
regular reports are provided. The performance of the Institute against the performance objectives is
indicated in the annual funding agreement.
Board of Directors
The Board is the accounting authority of the Institute as outlined in the MOI. It is required to meet at
least quarterly. The Board met at least once per quarter and ensured that quarterly meetings are held.
The Board meetings are scheduled annually in advance. Special meetings are convened as necessary
to address specific issues.
The Board directs the Institute’s risk assessment, resource management, strategic planning, financial
and operational management to ensure that obligations to shareholders and other stakeholders are
understood and met. Major responsibilities of the Board include the review of business plans, budgets,
monitoring of performance, approval of major policy decisions and the appointment of the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Certain functions are delegated to committees
consisting of non-executive directors as detailed within this section.
Good corporate governance requires that the composition of the Board be reviewed on a regular basis.
The rotation of directors at regular intervals is accepted as standard practice since it ensures that the
Board remains dynamic and does not become stagnant in terms of thinking and abilities. However, it is
important that the process is managed in such a way that the rotation of directors does not lead to a
disruption in the operations of the business and that the Board is well-balanced in terms of skills,
expertise and demographics (race, gender and people with disabilities).
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Delegation of authority
The political authority of the Institute is the MEC for Economic Development, Tourism and
Environmental Affairs in KwaZulu-Natal, Mr. Sihle Zikalala. The Board has the authority to assist with
leadership on the strategic business of the institute, including the authority to delegate its powers. The
Board aims to ensure that the Institute remains sustainable and viable. The Board’s responsibilities are
facilitated by a well-developed governance structure through its sub-committees and a comprehensive
delegation of authority framework.
Board evaluation and performance
A performance evaluation of the Board and individual directors is conducted at the end of the financial
year. Any shortcomings are addressed and areas of strength consolidated. The performance of Board
committees is evaluated against their terms of reference.
Board and committee meeting attendance
No of meetings held during the year are as follows:

Members
No of meetings held
Special Meetings
Total Meetings

Board

Audit &
Risk
Committee

Finance
Committee

4
6
10

3
1
4

3
3
6

Education &
Skills
Development
Committee
4
0
4

Human
Resources
Committee

Social &
Ethics
Committee

4
0
4

4
0
4

The table below reflects attendance of the membership of the Board and Senior Management.

Members
Dr SG Ngcobo
Prof MS Maharaj
Dr IZ Machi
Dr E V Nzama
Ms M P Myeni
Dr BD Mkhwanazi**
Ms S Khomo
Mr B Gutshwa***
Mr S B Mpungose*
Ms T P Ellenson*
Mr R. Persad
(Acting CEO)

Board
10
10
8
9
10
2
8
1
6
6
2

Members and meeting attendance
Education &
Audit &
Finance
Skills
Risk
Committee Development
Committee
Committee
1
4
6
4
4
4
3
4
6

Human
Resources
Committee

Social &
Ethics
Committee
2

4
2
2
1

3
1
4

4
3
2
4

4
4
5

3
2

3
3

3
2

1

1

1

1

1

* is the executive director. ** Deceased and subsequently resigned on 4 August 2016 ***Independent
member
Board committees
Board committees assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. Committees’ recommendations
and reports to the Board ensure transparency and full disclosure of committee activities. Each
committee operates within terms of reference that defines the composition, role, responsibilities and
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
delegated authority of the committee. The Board, from time to time, sets up committees for specific (ad
hoc) purposes. Committee meeting attendance is reflected above. These are the standing committees
during the period under review. In addition to the terms of reference, a Board committee exercises its
delegated authority in accordance with specific policies approved by the Board from time to time.
Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee comprises of two independent members external to the Institute, the
chief executive officer (“executive director”) of the Institute and the non-executive directors of the Board
of the Institute and one has resigned. The Institute is in the process of recruiting a second independent
member to replace the member whose term ended. The committee monitors the internal control
systems to protect the Institute’s interests and assets. This committee also reviews any accounting and
auditing concerns raised by internal and external audit, the Annual Financial Statements and the interim
reports.
The Audit and Risk Committee ensures that an effective internal audit function is in place and that the
roles and functions of external audit and internal audit are sufficiently clarified and coordinated to
provide an objective overview of the operational effectiveness of the Institute’s system of internal
control, risk management, governance and reporting. This includes overseeing the IT risks and fraud
risks as they relate to financial reporting and the internal financial controls, and reporting to the board
on the effectiveness thereof.
The Committee also has to assess the performance of the internal audit function, and the adequacy of
available internal audit resources. In addition, the Audit and Risk Committee considers and
appropriately deals with any complaints received relating to the Annual Financial Statements,
accounting practices or internal audit, whether from within or outside of the Institute.
The Audit and Risk Committee considers and makes recommendations on the appointment and
retention of the auditors and ensures that such appointments comply with legislation, the fees paid and
the terms of engagement; pre-approves the nature and extent of any non-audit services and evaluates
their independence, objectivity and effectiveness. Auditors have unrestricted access to the chairperson
of the Audit and Risk committee and the chairperson of the Board. The committee reviews the accuracy,
reliability and creditability of statutory financial reporting.
It also reviews the Annual Financial Statements of the Institute, as presented by management prior to
Board approval. The Audit and Risk Committee meetings were held during the review period. The
Committee had the following members:
•
•
•
•

Prof. M. Maharaj (Board member and chairperson)
Mr. B. Gutshwa (Independent, external)
Ms. M.P. Myeni (Board member)
Ms. S. Khomo (Board member)

Permanent invitees
•
•
•
•

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Internal Auditors
External Auditors

Compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standard, Companies Act and King IV
Report
The Board is the accounting authority in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 as amended. The
Institute has adhered to the statutory duties and responsibilities imposed by the Companies Act 71 of
2008 as amended, International Reporting Standard and King IV. The Institute’s system and processes
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
are regularly reviewed to ensure that compliance is monitored in this regard. In addition, The Institutes
is also guided on best practices by the King reports on Corporate Governance for South Africa and the
Protocol on Corporate Governance in the Public Sector-2002.
The PFMA in principle regulates financial management and governance. The Institute is funded mainly
by government and therefore borrows from Public Finance Management Act as good practice.
Integrated risk management
The effective management of risk is central to the achievement of the Institute’s vision. By
understanding and managing risk, we can provide greater certainty and security for our employees, our
customers and stakeholders.
The Institute’s Board, through the Audit and Risk committee, acknowledges its overall accountability for
ensuring an effective results-driven, internal risk management process. Management committee strives
to implement a risk monitoring system that enables management to respond appropriately to all
significant risks that could impact on business objectives.
Responsibility for the management of risk resides with line management of the Institute. Those
accountable for the management of risks also ensure that the necessary controls remain in place and
are effective at all times. Control effectiveness focuses on improving our ability to manage risk
effectively, so that we can quickly and confidently act on opportunities to improve and sustain the quality
and continuity of supply, create value and achieve sustainable growth.
The Institute strives to perform risk management at all levels to ensure that risk is reported upwards.
After consolidation of these integrated risk reports, Management committee and the Audit and Risk
committee review and evaluate the risk profile to determine the major operational, strategic and
business continuity risks.
Ethical business conduct
Good corporate governance is about effective ethical leadership, which requires leadership that
demonstrates ethics in decision making, leads by example and oversees the management of ethics
within the Institute. The Institute’s Board is accountable for the Institute’s ethics management program
and the operational responsibilities lie with Executive Committee (“EXCO”). The Executive Committee
assists the Chief Executive Officer in setting the framework, rules, standards and boundaries for ethical
behaviour, and provides ethics training and an advisory service to employees, assisting them in dealing
effectively with ethical dilemmas in the workplace.
Internal control
Management is responsible for establishing an effective internal control environment, which is
developed and maintained on an ongoing basis to provide reasonable assurance to the Board
regarding:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The integrity and reliability of the Annual Financial Statements
The safeguarding of the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute’s assets
Economic and efficient use of resources
Compliance with applicable legislation and regulations
Verification of the accomplishment of established goals and objectives, and
Detection and minimisation of fraud, potential liability, loss and material misstatement

These controls are contained in the Institute’s policies and procedures, structures and approval
frameworks, and they provide direction, establish accountability and ensure adequate segregation of
duties. They each contain self-monitoring mechanisms.
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Declaration by the Company Secretary in respect of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act
In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 0f 2008, as amended, I certify that the
company had lodged with the Commissioner all such returns as are required of a public company
in terms of the Companies Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.

___________________________________
Statucor (Proprietary) Limited
1989/005394/07
Company Secretary
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
The Board ensures that an effective internal control framework is established and maintained. The
internal audit function monitors the operation of the internal control system and report’s findings and
recommendations for improvement to management and the audit committee.
The audit committee monitors and evaluates the duties and responsibilities of management and of
internal and external auditors to ensure that all major issues reported have been satisfactorily resolved.
Finally, the audit committee reports all important matters considered necessary to the Board.
Governance and compliance
The Board takes fraud seriously and ensures that there is minimum exposure to fraud and criminal acts.
One of the measures has been to implement the whistle-blowing policies, procedures and fraud and
corruption prevention policy. The Board Committees addresses these threats. Its work covers crime
prevention, detection, response and investigation. Where serious fraud, corruption and irregularities are
suspected, forensic audit is instituted where necessary to establish the acts to enable management to
deal appropriately with the matter and prevent a recurrence. This is done within the whistle blowing
framework.
Employment equity
The Institute applies employment policies that are considered appropriate to the business and the
market in which it operates. They are designed to attract, motivate and retain quality staff at all levels.
Equal employment opportunities are offered without discrimination to all employees and specific
affirmative processes available to historically disadvantaged individuals.
Code of ethics
The Institute subscribes to a code of ethics and endeavours to act with honesty, responsibility and
integrity towards its stakeholders.
Corporate citizenship and sustainability
The Institute’s business must be run in an ethical manner, considering its impact on all stakeholders. In
addition, it means that the Institute needs to contribute to the realisation of the hopes and aspirations
of people in KwaZulu-Natal and South Africa. This includes contributing to a safe working environment,
environmental responsibility, promoting the shared growth initiative for the province and corporate
social responsibility and improving the lives of all in the province of KwaZulu- Natal.
General Review
The business and operations and the results thereof of the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute (“the Institute”)
are clearly reflected in the attached Annual Financial Statements. No material fact or circumstance has
occurred between the accounting date and the date of this report.
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
The Role of the Audit and Risk Committee is to provide oversight responsibilities in the financial
reporting process, the system of internal control, the audit process and the entities monitoring of
compliance with laws and regulations, the code of conduct, the appointment and evaluation of
qualifications and independence of the Institute’s independent auditors. This includes overseeing the
IT risks and fraud risks as they relate to financial reporting and the internal financial controls, and
reporting to the Board on the effectiveness thereof. The Board in turn has to report on effectiveness of
the system of internal controls.
The Audit and Risk Committee:
•

Evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC for the period
ended 31 March 2017. Based on the information provided, the Audit and Risk Committee
considers that the Annual Financial Statements comply, in all material respects, with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard
(“IFRS”),

•

Reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting policies and procedures of the accounting
policies and practices;

•

Concurred that the adoption of the going concern premises in the preparation of Annual
Financial Statements is appropriate; and

•

Acknowledged and condoned the emphasis of matter.

The Audit and Risk Committee recommended approval of the enclosed Annual Financial Statements
for the period ended 31 March 2017 by the Board.

_____________________
Professor Manoj Maharaj
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee

41 | P a g e

41

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TOURISM AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS ON THE
MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Moses Kotane Institute NPC set out on pages
47 to 85, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Moses Kotane Institute NPC as at 31 March 2017, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South
Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (the Companies Act).
Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion
Responsibilities of the accounting authority

6. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS and the
requirements of the Companies Act and for such internal control as the accounting authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

7. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the
Moses Kotane Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
accounting authority either intends to liquidate the entity or cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so
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Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

8. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

9. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to the auditor’s report.

Performance information reporting

10. The entity is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined
objectives as it does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance Management Act of South
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and such reporting is also not required in terms of the entity’s
specific legislation
Report on audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
11. In accordance with the Public Audit Act (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof,
I have a responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the entity with specific
matters in key legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather
evidence to express assurance.
12. I did not identify any instances of material non-compliance with selected specific requirements
of applicable legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information

13. The Moses Kotane Institute NPC accounting authority is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, which includes
the director’s report, the audit committee’s report and the company secretary’s certificate as
required by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial
statements and the auditor’s report thereon.
14. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on compliance with legislation do not
cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

15. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work I have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am
required to report that fact.
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Internal control deficiencies
16. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements; however, my
objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. I did not identify any significant
deficiencies in internal control.
Other reports
17. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could
have, an impact on the matters reported in the entity’s financial statements, compliance with
applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion
on the financial statements or compliance with legislation.
18. An independent consulting firm is performing investigations at the request of the entity, as
well as internal investigations, which covered the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017. The
investigations were initiated based on allegations of misconduct and supply chain
management irregularities. One of the two investigations has been finalised

Pietermaritzburg
27 July 2017
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and on the entity’s
compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.
Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the
auditor’s report, I also:
•

•

•

•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the board of directors, which
constitutes the accounting authority.
conclude on the appropriateness of the board of directors, which constitutes the accounting
authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Moses
Kotane Institute NPC ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based
on the information available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Communication with those charged with governance
3.

I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that I identify during my audit.

4.

I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and here applicable, related
safeguards.
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

The directors have the pleasure in presenting their report for the financial period ended 31 March 2017
in terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
General Review
The business and operations and the results thereof of the Moses Kotane Institute are reflected in the
attached financial statements. No material fact or circumstance has occurred between the accounting
date and the date of this report.
Nature of Business Activities
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC, which is registered as a Non-Profit company in terms of the
Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008, is a non-profit organization whose main business is:
•

•
•

•

Provision of STEM skills for economic development and service delivery to members of society
through recognised school intervention programmes, further and higher education and training
career paths to facilitate migration into areas of economic potential;
Facilitation of access to STEM careers at higher education through graduate development
programmes to enhance participation in the mainstream economy;
Enhancement knowledge and skills of educators, leadership and governance capacity and
capabilities for government departments, municipalities and traditional authorities to enhance
service delivery and rapid economic transformation and development; and
Provision of continuous strategic political education underpinned UBUNTU, good governance,
developmental state approach and embedding a historical perspective of poverty, lack of
knowledge, lack of skills and associated underdevelopment.

With these strategic goals as the framework, the Institute focuses on:
•

Contributing to economic development in the Province
o

o

o

Creation of a pool of advanced talent in the Province to service the needs of vertical
industries driven by STEM capabilities (providing skills as a vehicle for economic
development).
Creation of a pool of appropriately skilled STEM graduates capable of underpinning
service delivery through the public and private sectors in KZN (providing enhanced
levels of service delivery).
Building a pool of appropriately skilled Mathematics and Science educators to
overcome a key blockage in the system that reduces STEM capabilities in the Province.

Application of the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been prepared in accordance
to Companies Act and International Financial Reporting Standard.
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Review of financial position and results
The results of the Institute’s operations during the year under review, and the state of its affairs under
review are set out in the attached annual financial statements and notes thereto.
Subsequent events
The matter of fraud of an amount of R204 934.19 was discovered in April 2017, and was reported to
Provincial Treasury, Auditor General South Africa and Department of Economic Development, Tourism
and Environmental Affairs.
There were no other further events subsequent to financial year end to the date of approval of the
financial statements that would require adjustment or further disclosure in the financial statements.
Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that for the year ended 31 March 2017 the Institute has a surplus of R6
517 708.69 committed (2016 surplus of R3 295 694.72) and that the Institute's assets exceeded its
liabilities by R10 690 302.74 (2016 by R4 173 211).
The Institute will be a going concern in the years ahead and as such, it adopts the going concern basis
in preparing the annual financial statements. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance
future operations and that the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations
and commitments that will occur is dependent on several factors. The most significant of these is that
the Board continues to procure funding from the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development,
Tourism and Environmental Affairs.
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Institute will not remain a going
concern for the foreseeable future.
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Note

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

ASSETS

2015
R'000

11,994

Restated
3,196

Restated
2,722

6,054

2,105

2,166

5,772

265

538

168

826

18

5,295

5,359

4,952

5,006

5,019

4,941

289

340

11

17,289

8,555

7,674

6,586

4,343

6,829

6,016

3,923

6,219

438

407

596

132

13

13

13

38

38

13

38

38

6,599

4,382

6,866

Net assets

10,690

4,173

808

Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficit)

10,690

4,173

808

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

17,289

8,555

7,674

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and other receivables
VAT Receivable

2
3
4

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

5
6

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
Current Provisions
Current portion of Deferred Income

7
8
9

Non-current liabilities
Deferred Income

9

TOTAL LIABILITIES
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Note

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

REVENUE
Revenue from Government Grants
Government Grants and Subsidies

59,889
59,889

49,577
49,577

470

512

90
380

308
204

TOTAL REVENUE

60,359

50,089

GROSS PROFIT

60,359

50,089

(10,210)
(2,326)
(564)
(429)
(3,601)
(6,752)
(30,414)

(11,463)
(1,865)
(383)
(413)
(4,109)
(8,169)
(20,676)

(54,296)

(47,078)

6,063
454
0
454
6,517
0
6,517
0
6,517

3,011
285
0
285
3,296
0
3,296
0
3,296

10

Other income
Public Contributions and Donations
Other income and Rentals

11
12

EXPENSES
Employee Related Costs
Directors' Emoluments
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Auditors' Remuneration
Administration Expenses
Operating Expenses
Skill Development & STEM expenses

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

TOTAL EXPENSES
OPERATING PROFIT
Finance Income
Finance cost
NET FINANCE INCOME
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income Tax
TOTAL SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD NET OF TAX
Other comprehensive income for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
-

Note
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2015
Changes in accounting policy
Correction of prior period error

24

BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2015
Total Comprehensive income
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2016
Changes in accounting policy
Correction of prior period error

BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2016
Correction of prior period error
Total Comprehensive income
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2017
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Accumulated
Surplus

Total Equity

R '000

R '000
808

808

0
69

0
69

877

877

3,296

3,296

4,173

4,173

0
0

0
0

4,173

4,173

0

0

6,517

6,517

10,690

10,690

MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Note

2017
R '000

2016
R '000

6,517

3,297

81
31
564
(25)
7,286
(5,507)
658
119
2,091
4,529

232
(20)
383
0
3,892
273
(808)
0
(2,465)
893

(580)
(505)
(75)

(954)
(615)
(339)

(580)

(954)

Cash flows from financing activities

0

0

Net cash flows from financing activities

0

0

3,949
2,105

(61)
2,166

6,054

2,105

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit
Adjustments for –
Loss on sale of tangible assets
Movement in provision
Depreciation and amortisation
Deferred income
Operating surplus before working capital
(increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(increase)/decrease in Vat receivable
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Net cash flows from operating activities

21

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Assets
Purchase of Other Intangible Assets

5
6

Net cash flows from investing activities.

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
1

Accounting Policies
The following are the principle accounting policies used in the preparation of the annual
financial statements;

1 1.1

Basis of Preparation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern and historical basis unless
otherwise stated in accordance with the effective of International Financial Reporting Standard
including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
New standards and interpretations not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of MKI, for the year ended 31 March 2017, the
following Standards and interpretations applicable to MKI were in issue but not effective:
IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018*
IFRS 16 (2015) Leases Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019*
The impact on the financial statements for MKI cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2017.
Amendments to IFRS5, IFRS7, IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12, IFRS14, IFRS15, IAS1, IAS19, IAS27,
IAS28, and IAS41 are not applicable to the business of MKI and will therefore have no impact on
future financial statements.
The below standards are applicable to MKI.
Standard of IAS
IFRS 1: First -time Adoption of IFRSs
IFRS 7: Financial Instruments - Disclosure
IFRS 8: Operating Segments
IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows
IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimate and Errors
IAS 10: Events After the Reporting Period
IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
IAS 17: Leases
IAS 18: Revenue
IAS 19: Employee Benefit
IAS 20: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
IAS 24: Related party Disclosure
IAS 36: Impairment of Assets
IAS 37: Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
IAS 38: Intangible Assets

1.2

Currency
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rands since that is the
currency in which most of the entity's transactions are denominated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
1.3

Going Concern Assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.4

Significant Arears of Judgement
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying values the preparation of financial statements requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values.

1.4.1

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when all the following conditions are met:
· The entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
· It is probable that an outflow or economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
· A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date.
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle the obligation are reflected in the
amount of the provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.
Contingent liability is recognised when all the following conditions are met.
- A possible obligation that arises from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly in the control of
the entity; or
- A present obligation that arises from past events that is not recognised because: -it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
-the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
Contingent liability is recognised when all the following conditions are met
– possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity

1.4.2

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization recognized on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying items. The
useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of the asset’s
condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, and expected future use
and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the asset at the end of its
useful life. In evaluating the condition and use of the asset informs the useful life and residual value
management considers the impact of technology and minimum service requirements of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
1.4.3

Estimates
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management,
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These

estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to errors are
processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively.

1.4.4

Impairments of Non-Financial Assets
In testing for, and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required to
rely on the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows (in the case
of cash-generating assets). For non-cash generating assets, estimates are made regarding the
depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the asset, depending on the nature
of the impairment and the availability of information. Refer to accounting policy 1.9.

1.5

Revenue Recognition

1.5.1

General
Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable in the ordinary course of
the business. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to MKI and
that these benefits can be reliably measured.

1.5.2

Interest Income and expenses
Interest refers to revenue that accrued to the Institute directly from interest earned on investments
and is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the time proportionate basis that
considers the effective yield on the investment.

1.5.3

Government Grants
Revenue received from government grants and funding are recognized as revenue when there is
reasonable assurance the entity will comply with the conditions attached to the grant.

1.5.4

Deferred Income
When the inflow of cash or cash equivalents and assets are deferred and the arrangement constitutes
in effect a financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is the present value of all future
receipts determined using an imputed rate of interest. The imputed rate of interest is either the
prevailing rate for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating, or a rate of interest that
discounts the nominal amount of the instrument to the current cash sales price of the goods or
services. The difference between the present value of all future receipts and the nominal amount of
the consideration is interest revenue.

1.6

Employee Benefits

1.6.1

Short-term Employee Benefits
Short term employee benefits encompass all those benefits that become payable in the short term,
i.e. within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short term employee
benefits include remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses.
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Short term employee benefits are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as services
are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognized when the specific event
occurs. These short-term employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted costs in the period
the employee renders the related service or the specific event occurs.
The Institute treats its leave pay as an accrual.

The costs of all short-term employee benefits such as leave pay, are recognized during the period in
which the employee renders the related service. The liability for leave pay is based on the total
accrued leave days at year end and is shown as an accrual in the Statement of Financial Position.
The Institute recognizes the expected cost of performance bonuses only when the Institute has a
present legal or constructive obligation to make such payment and a reliable estimate can be made.
1.6.2

Defined Contribution Plan
The institute contributes to the Momentum Pension Fund for all full-time staff eligible for long term
service payments and whose membership is also compulsory. The fund is a defined contribution
plan. The Institute contributes 7.5% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees also contribute
7.5% of their pensionable remuneration. The pension fund obligations are paid when due and are
terminated when the employee's employment with the Institute is terminated.

1.7

Property, Plant and Equipment
Initial Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the supply of
services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more
than one reporting period. Property plant and equipment consist of land and buildings, computer
equipment, furniture and fittings office equipment, and motor vehicles.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when:
•
•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity; and
The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment
and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognized.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset
or assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially
measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed
cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized as assets on acquisition date and are
initially recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transactions. However, when items of
property, plant and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactions, those items are
initially measured at their fair values as at the date of acquisition.
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When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
These major components are depreciated separately over their useful lives.
Subsequent measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are accounted for at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The Institute depreciates its property, plant and
equipment over the estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the
assets at the end of their useful lives, which is determined when the assets are available for use. The
useful lives and residual values of the assets are based on industry knowledge.
Subsequent costs are capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits associated with
usage will flow to the Institute.

Depreciation
The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the expected
useful lives to their estimated residual value, on the following bases:

Building
Computer equipment
Furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Motor Vehicle

40 years (2.5%)
3 years (33.3%)
10 years (10%)
5 years (20%)
5 years (20%)

Impairments
The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An
assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date.
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by
the impairment loss, which is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the period that the impairment is identified.
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognized. A reversal
of the impairment is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
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1.8

Intangible Assets
Initial Recognition and measurement
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangibles are
non-tangible non-current assets that are held for use for administrative purposes and are expected
to be used during more than one period and consist of computer software. The entity recognizes an
intangible asset in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the
cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
An intangible asset is recognized when:
•
•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity; and
The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an
expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognized when:
• It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• There is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
•
•
•
•

There is an ability to use or sell it.
It will generate probable future economic benefits.
There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the asset.
The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured
reliably.

Subsequent measurement
Intangible assets are accounted for at historical cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.
The cost of an intangible asset is amortized over the useful life where that useful life is finite. The
amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset.
The useful lives of the assets are based on industry knowledge.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors,
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash
inflows. Amortization is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible
assets amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every
period-end.
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Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as
indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment
and the remaining carrying amount is amortized over its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the carrying amount of assets exceeds
their recoverable amount.
The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Amortisation and impairment
Amortisation is charged to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straightline basis, to their residual values as follows:

Computer software

3 years (33.3%)

The amortisation period, the amortisation method and residual value for intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in
accounting estimate in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Impairments
The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible
impairment is performed at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of an intangible
asset is greater than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss
is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derecognition
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further
economic benefits or service potential expected from the asset. The gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
1.9

Impairment on Assets

1.9.1

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, MKI reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
individual assets, MKI estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. in assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. if the recoverable amount
of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. When an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

1.10

Leasing
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. When a lease includes both land and buildings elements,
the entity assesses the classification of each element separately.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are
recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.11

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with local banks and cash on hand. Cash equivalents
are short-term highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with
maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

1.12

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the institute's statement of financial position when
the institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments
carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
accounts receivable, prepayments and advances, provisions and trade and other accounts payable.
Where relevant, the recognition methods are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated
with each item.
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Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost, which due to their short-term nature, closely
approximate their fair value less provision for impairment.
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or a residual interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or using an allowance account)
for impairment or uncollectibility.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other
party by failing to discharge an obligation.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from
an entity’s statement of financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar
options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected
life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases
when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument
(or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full
contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). Fair value is the
amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
o receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
o exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the entity.
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Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due.

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to
the transaction as forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs
or at the time of the contribution; or
• A formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing
financial interest in the net assets of an entity.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been
incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• Are held for trading.
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
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Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the
following categories:
•

Financial instruments at amortised cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
• combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
• An investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Gains and losses
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is
recognised in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or
impaired, or through the amortisation process.
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal
does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
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Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived on
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, expires or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability
is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a
part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised
a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit

Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised
as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is
recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does
not offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.13

Offset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset if there is a legal right to offset and there is an
intention either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1.14

Taxation
The Institute is a public benefit organization as described by the section 30 of the Income Tax Act
No. 58 of 1962 which was formed and incorporated under section 21 of the Companies Act, 1973
(Act No.71 of 2008). The institute operates on funds derived from government grants. The institute's
receipts and accruals are therefore exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1) (cN) of the
Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962.

1.15

Recovery of Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated
procedures, and is recognised when the recovery thereof from the responsible officials is probable.
The recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is treated as other income.

1.16

Related Parties
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned
by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three
spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the provincial sphere of government are
considered to be related parties.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation,
in instances where they are required to perform such functions.

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.
Related parties are disclosed in terms of IAS 24.

1.17

Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions
that will normally result in the outflow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in
a note to the financial statements, if both the following criteria are met:
• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example,
contracts for computer or building maintenance services); and
• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the
entity – therefore salary commitments relating to employment contracts or social security
benefit commitments are excluded.
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1.18

Prior Year Comparative
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior
period comparative amounts are also reclassified and restated. The nature and reason for such
reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed.
Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current
year, the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives
are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year,
the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are
restated accordingly.

1.19

Events after Reporting Date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between
the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of
events can be identified:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events
after the reporting date); and
• Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting
events after the reporting date).
The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events
after the reporting date once the event occurred.
The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement
that such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where nondisclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the annual financial
statements.
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2017
R'000

2

2016
R'000

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Cash at bank
Call deposits
Total Cash and cash Equivalents

5,338
715
6,054

1,778
327
2,105

Cash book balance at beginning of the year

1,778

2,124

Cash book balance at end of the year

5,051

1,778

Bank statement balance at beginning of the year

1,778

2,124

Bank statement balance at end of the year

5,051

1,778

89

10

694

89

89

10

694

89

239

32

21

239

239

32

21

239

The Institute has the following bank accounts:
Current account:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6220 790 1176

Deposits on call (Money Market):
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6220 790 5194
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year
Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year
Investment account (7-day interest plus):
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 7432 271 5374
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year
Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year
FNB STEM Corporate Cheque Acc:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6260 663 7447
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year

0
168

0
0

Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year

0
168

0
0
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FNB TETA Corporate Cheque Acc:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6245 477 8435
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year

0
120

0
0

Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year

0
120

0
0

Cash on hand
Total cash and cash equivalents

3

6,054

Trade And Other Receivables
Deposits
Prepayments
Trade and other receivables
Other receivables
Accrued Interest earned
Trade and other receivables

2,105

R`000

R`000

213
9
5,328
209
13
5,772

213
20
0
32
0
265

R`000

R`000

168

826

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their
carrying value.

4

VAT Receivable
VAT Receivable
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

2017

2016

Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
&
Impairment

Carrying
Value

R'000

R'000

R'000

Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
&
Impairment

Carrying
Value

R'000

R'000

R'000

Office buildings
Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

4 350
187
1 313
117
820

-

734
162
360
81
443

3 616
25
953
36
377

4 350
187
1 228
115
701

-

625
150
339
68
280

3 725
37
789
47
421

Total

6 787 -

1 780

5 007

6 581 -

1 462

5 019

*Refer to Appendix B for an Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment
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5.1 Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment - 2017
Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance
Office Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

R'000
3 725
37
789
47
421

Total

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

R'000

R'000

R'000

5 019

Depreciation Impairment

0
0
371
6
128

0
0
(78)
0
(2)

0
0
0
0
0

R'000
(109)
(12)
(129)
(17)
(170)

505

(80)

0

(437)

R'000

Revaluation

Prior Year
Errors

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

R'000
3 616
25
953
36
377

0

0

0

5 007

5.2 Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment - 2016
Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance
Office Buildings
Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

R'000
3 833
75
852
76
104

Total

4 940

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

R'000

R'000

R'000

Depreciation Impairment

0
0
226
4
385

0
0
(173)
(15)
(44)

0
0
0
0
0

R'000
(108)
(38)
(116)
(20)
(92)

615

(232)

0

(374)
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R'000

Revaluation

Prior Year
Errors

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
2
68

R'000
3 725
37
789
47
421

0

0

70

5 019
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6. Intangible Assets
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

2017

2016

Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
& Impairment

Carrying
Value

Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
& Impairment

Carrying
Value

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Computer Software

419

-

130

289

449

-

109

340

Total

419

-

130

289

449

-

109

340

* Refer to Appendix B for an Analysis of Intangible Assets
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6.1 Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2017
Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

R'000

R'000

R'000

Transfers

Amortization

Computer Software

340

75

0

R'000
0

R'000
(126)

Total

340

75

0

0

(126)

Impairment

Revaluation

Prior Year
Errors

R'000

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance
R'000

0

0

0

289

0

0

0

289

6.2 Reconciliation of Intangible Assets - 2016
Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance

Additions

Disposals

R'000

R'000

R'000

Transfers

R'000

Amortization

Impairment

Revaluation

Prior Year
Errors

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance
R'000

Computer Software

10

339

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

340

Total

10

339

0

0

(9)

0

0

0

340
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7. Trade and Other Payables
Trade creditors
Other payables
Leave
Pay
Total Trade and Other
Payables

2017

2016

4107
1690

2374
1380

218

169

6016

3923

8. Current Provisions
8.1 Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2017

Opening Balance
Amounts utilised for the year
Amount raised for the year
Closing Balance
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Audit fee
provisions

Total

R'000
407
(398)
429

R'000
407
(398)
429

438

438

MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
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8.1 Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2016

Opening Balance
Amounts utilised for the year
Amount raised for the year
Closing Balance

9.

Audit fee
provisions

Total

R'000
386
(386)
407

R'000
386
(386)
407

407

407

R'000

R'000

145

51

132
13

13
38

Deferred Income

Arising from government grant
less: Current portion of transferred to
current
Non-current unspent conditional grants and receipts

The deferred income arises as a result of assets and funds from government and funders to
the institute.
The deferred revenue is released to the statement of comprehensive income as an
amortisation of liability.
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2017
R'000

10

Government Grants and Subsidies
Revenue
Other government grants and subsidies
EDTEA
External funding
Office of the Premier
LG SETA
TETA
Total Government Grants and Subsidies

11

49,577

6,850
2,160
1,655
59,889

0
0
0
49,577

90
90

308
308

25
1
339

0
4
0

15
380

200
204

8,028

8,628

901

1,118

437
159
0
539
146
10,210

676
65
1
762
213
11,463

Other Income
Other income
Deferred income realized income
Sundry income
Rentals
Recovery of unauthorized, irregular, fruitless and wasteful
expenditure
Total Other Income

13

49.224

Public Contributions and Donations
Public contributions and donations
Total Public Contributions and Donations

12

2016
R'000

Employee Related Costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - contribution for UIF, Pensions and
Medical Aid
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other
allowances
Bursaries and training
Overtime payments
Guaranteed bonuses
Other employee related costs
Total Employee Related Costs
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2017
R'000

2016
R'000

1,159
86

972
81

206
134
1,584

211
147
1,411

934
82

861
73

114
84
1,214

107
74
1,115

0
0

600
84

0
0
0

55
74
813

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
Annual Remuneration
Performance and other bonuses
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and
other allowances
Contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid

Remuneration of the Chief Finance Officer
Annual Remuneration
Performance and other bonuses
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and
other allowances
Contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid

Remuneration of an Executive Manager
Annual Remuneration
Performance and other bonuses
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and
other allowances
Contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid

The Executive Manager was employed from 1 April
2015 to 31 December 2015.
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14

2017

2016

R`000

R`000

2,798

3,339

2,057
2
2,059
267
2,326

1,694
42
1,736
129
1,865

Directors' Emoluments
Executive directors
Included in employee related costs
Non-executive directors
Directors emoluments
External independent directors
Directors' other expenses
Directors Emoluments and Other Expenses

Refer to Appendix A for a breakdown of Directors’ emoluments

15

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total Depreciation and Amortization
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2017
R'000

16

Auditors' Remuneration
External auditors
Total Auditors' Remuneration

17

429
429

413
413

17
132
148
454
516
81
205
831
29
1,188
3,601

15
127
129
392
645
111
212
2,440
38
0
4,109

52
614
0
4,399
275
39
346
667
81
52
227
6,752

41
620
0
4,508
387
39
981
1,036
232
18
307
8,169

Administration Expenses
Bank charges
Electricity
Insurance
Rental of office equipment
Other rentals
Printing and stationery
Facilities
Security services
License renewals
Business Development
Total Administration Expenses

18

2016
R'000

Operating Expenses
Cleaning
Communications
Conferences and delegations
Consulting and professional services
Internal auditors
Meals and refreshments
Travel and subsistence
Office restructuring and security upgrade
Loss on disposal of assets
Motor Vehicle Expenses
General expenses and consumables
Total Operating Expenses
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19

Skills Development & STEM expenses

19.1

Programme 2: Strategic Partnerships in SET

19.1.1

Business Development
Moses Kotane week
Marketing and communication
Total Business Development

19.1.2

19.2
19.2.1

19.2.2

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

0
0
0

591
1,422
2,014

Sector Skills Development
Learner stipend allowance
Learner materials
Learner meals and accommodation expense
Training costs
Travel and subsistence
Total Sector Skills Development

406
0
9,296
1,500
852
12,054

0
73
4,488

Total Programme 2: Strategic Partnerships in SET

12,054

6,535

2,811
0
175
2,979
996
0
6,961

78
324
0
4,295
452
12
5,162

3,811
1,302
6,286
11,398

8,818
0
0
8,818

0
4,521

Programme 3: STEM Education and Academic
Development
STEM Education & Professional Improvement
Learner materials
Learner tuition
Learner transport
Learner meals and accommodation expense
Teachers stipend
Travel & subsistence
Total STEM Education & Professional Improvement
STEM Graduate Development
Learner tuition
Learner materials
Meals and accommodation
Total STEM Graduate Development
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19.2.3

20

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

0
0
0
0
0
0

162
0
0
0
0
162

Total Programme 3: STEM Education and Academic
Development

18,359

14,141

Total Programme expenses

30,414

20,676

2017

2016

R`000

R`000

Bank Interest

454

285

Total

454

285

6,517

3,297

81
31
564
(25)
7,286
(5,507)
658
119
2,091
4,529

232
(20)
383
0
3,891
273
(808)
0
(2,465)
893

Sector Research and Development
Research and development
Learner tuition
Meals and Refreshments
Travel & subsistence
Other programme costs
Total Sector Research and Development

NET FINANCE INCOME
Revenue

21

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year from:
Adjustment for:(Gain) / loss on sale of tangible Assets
Contribution to provisions - current
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income
Operating surplus before working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in VAT receivable
(Increase)/decrease in Deferred Income
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities
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22

Retirement Benefit Information
Defined contribution plan
The institute contributes to the Momentum Pension Fund for all full-time staff eligible for long term service
payments and whose membership is also compulsory. The fund is a defined contribution plan. The Institute
contributes 7.5% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees also contribute 7.5% of their
pensionable remuneration. The pension fund obligations are paid when due and are terminated when the
employee's employment with the Institute is terminated.

23

Risk Management
Maximum credit risk exposure
The institute’s financial instruments consist primarily of deposits with banks, trade accounts receivable and
payable. To manage the credit risk that the institute is exposed to as a result of holding these classes of
financial assets the following steps are generally taken:
• The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing
• The entity limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Financial instruments are carried at amortised cost.
In the normal course of operations, the Institute is exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and
foreign currency risk.

23.1

Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost
The financial assets carried at amortized cost expose the entity to credit risk. The value of the maximum
exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of classes of financial assets at amortized cost:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
23.2

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

6,054
5,772

2,105
265

Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost
The financial liabilities carried at amortized cost expose the entity to credit risk. The value of the maximum
exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of classes of financial liability at amortized cost:
R`000
6,016

Trade and other payables
23.3

R`000
3,923

Foreign currency risk management
Although the entity`s funds that are placed with financial institutions may be subject to currency risk does
not affect cash flows of the entity as majority of our liabilities are Rand denominated.
There is no foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities as at the reporting date.
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23.4

Liquidity risk
The entity’s exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it is funded by the Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA). The annual budgets are approved at the
beginning of each fiscal year and drawdowns are requested at the beginning of each quarter. Cash
flows are monitored monthly against budgets and adjustments are made where necessary. Risk
management assessments are conducted bi-annually to assist with identifying any possible cash flows,
liquidity or other risks.

R`000
2017
Not later than
one month
Trade and other payables

Not later than
one month

23.5

Later than three
months and not
later than one
year

-

-

Later than one
month and not
later than three
months

Later than three
months and not
later than one
year

-

-

6,016

2016

Trade and other payables

Later than one
month and not
later than three
months

3,923

Later than
one year and
not later than
five years

Later than
one year and
not later than
five years

Interest rate risk
Although the entity`s funds are subject to interest rate risk, these funds are placed with reputable
financial institutions. The entity does not hedge any of its funds but monitors the fluctuations in interest
rates and obtains advice from bank officials on a regular basis. Although the Rand has fluctuated in
the recent months, the risks arising out of the decline in the Rand have not been passed onto entity.

23.6

Credit risk management
The entity does not have huge debtors book, as a result, its exposure to credit risk is minimal. The items
indicated under trade and other receivables refer to external funding, rental income. The cash and cash
equivalent are deposits which are placed with highly reputable financial institutions. The deposits
comprise of grants received from the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and
Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) and these grants are deposited as drawdowns. The entity limits its
exposure by dealing with well-established financial institutions.

24

Related Party Transactions
The following related party transaction was incurred during the period under review:
Transactions with related parties are conducted on an arm's length basis and on the same payment
terms as those transacted with third parties. None of the balances are secured. The institute therefore
has a related party relationship with its sole shareholder.
The transactions with directors are included in note 14 and 15.
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24.1

Transactions with related parties
The following transactions were carried out by
the Institute with related parties:
Grant funding received
KZN Sharks Board

25

2017
R`000

2016
R`000

49,224
(0)
49,224

49,577
(1)
49,576

Correction of Prior Error

The comparative amount(s) relating to the
Statement of Financial Position have been restated
as follows:
Accumulated depreciation
Cash and Bank
Accumulated Funds
Net effect on Statement of Financial Position

26

0
0
0
0

69
0
(69)
0

Operating Lease Commitments

Lessee

26.1

At the reporting date, the entity had the following outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases, which fall due as follows:
Office rentals - Embassy
Building
2017
Future
minimum
operating lease
payments

26.1.1

Office rentals - Embassy
Building
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for
settlement within 12 months
(current portion)
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Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
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R`000
2016
Future
minimum
operating lease
payments
26.1.2

26.2

Office rentals - Embassy
Building
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for
settlement within 12 months
(current portion)

Office rentals - Office
Equipment

Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

471
0

0
0

471
0

471

0

471

471

0

471

0

0

0

R`000
2017
Future
minimum
operating lease
payments

26.2.1

Office equipment
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for
settlement within 12 months
(current portion)
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Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

713
749

0
0

713
749

1,462

0

1,462

713

0

713

749

0

749
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R`000
2016
Future
minimum
operating lease
payments
26.2.2

27

Office equipment
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for
settlement within 12 months
(current portion)

713
1,461

0
0

713
1,461

2,174

0

2,174

713

0

713

1,461

0

1,461

Contingent Asset

Fruitless, wasteful and irregular expenditure
Recoverable through litigation
Unauthorised expenditure recoverable

28

Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

1,829
115
1,944

1,829
88
1,917

Contingent Liabilities
Legal proceedings
The entity had contingent liabilities of disputed claims (in litigation) amounting to R9 787 146 for the
year under review. The litigations are civil and are contractual. Litigations, current or pending, are not
likely to have a material adverse effect on the organisation.

29

Events After the Reporting Date
The matter of fraud was discovered to an amount of R204 934.19 in April 2017 and was
reported Treasury, Auditor General South Africa and KZN Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs.
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30.

Change in Accounting Estimate
The entity has reassessed the useful lives of property, plant and equipment which
resulted in certain following assets’ remaining useful lives to change on average. The
effect of the change in accounting estimate has resulted in a decrease in depreciation
amounting to R 40,191.45 for the current period. The effect on future periods could not
reasonably be determined.
R`000

Computer Equipment
Office Equipment
Motor Equipment

Useful Life from

Useful Life to

3
5
5

5
7
7

Increase/(decrease)
in depreciation
16
1
23

40
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Details of Directors Emoluments
The supplementary information is
unaudited

Salaries

2017
R'000
Bonuses Other

2016
R'000
Total

Executive Directors
Mr S B Mpungose (CEO)
Ms T P Ellenson
(CFO)

2093
1159

168
86

537
339

2798
1584

2526
1411

934

82

198

1214

1115

Non-Executive Directors
Prof M S Maharaj
Dr I Z Machi
Dr S G Ngcobo (Chairman)
Mr M Zakwe
Dr E.V Nzama
Ms N P Myeni
Dr B D Mkhwanazi*
Ms S Khomo
Mr B H Gutshwa

2059
279
417
463
0
219
395
40
244
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2059
279
417
463
0
219
395
40
244
0

1737
267
192
346
41
227
307
147
210
1

Details of directors' service contracts:
No directors have service contracts with notice periods in excess of one year and with provisions for
pre-determined compensation on termination of the contracts exceeding on year's salary and benefits
in kind.
(*) The late Dr. B D Mkhwanazi deceased during the financial year end resigned as a director on the
04 August 2016.
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Analysis of Property,Plant & Equipment
The supplementary information is audited

2017
R'000

Land and Buildings
Land and Buildings

Cost/Revaluation
Opening
Additions Disposals
balance
0
0
4350
0
0
4350

Closing
Balance
4350
4350

Other Assets
Motor Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Finance lease assets
Office equipment
Other assets

Closing
balance
-734
(734)

Carrying
value
3616
3616

2330
187
1127
115
901

505
0
371
6
128

(199)
0
(186)
(4)
(9)

2636
187
1312
117
1020

(1 036)
(150)
(338)
(68)
(480)

(328)
(12)
(129)
(17)
(170)

119
0
108
4
7

(1 247)
(162)
(360)
(82)
(643)

1391
25
953
36
377

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

6680

505

(199)

6986

(1 661)

(438)

119

(1 980)

5006

88
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Accumulated Depreciation
Opening
Depreciation Disposals
Balance
0
(109)
(625)
0
(109)
(625)
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Analysis of Property,Plant & Equipment
unaudited

2016
R'000

Land and Buildings
Land and Buildings
Other Assets
Motor Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Finance lease assets
Office equipment
Other assets

Cost/Revaluation
Opening
Additions
Disposals
balance
4350
0
0
4350
0
0

Closing
Balance
4350
4350

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening
Depreciation Disposals
Balance
(517)
(108)
0
(517)
(108)
0

Closing
balance
(625)
(625)

Carrying
value
3725
3725

8538
187
1270
149
6932

615
0
226
4
385

(6 823)
(369)
(38)
(6 416)

2330
187
1127
115
901

(7 396)
(112)
(411)
(71)
(6 802)

(266)
(38)
(116)
(20)
(92)

6626
0
189
23
6414

(1 036)
(150)
(338)
(68)
(480)

1294
37
789
47
421

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

12888

615

(6 823)

6680

(7 913)

(374)

0

(1 661)

5019
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